
           
SPECIAL MEETING

OF THE
OVERSIGHT BOARD

SUCCESSOR AGENCY
AGENDA

March 31, 2017
SPECIAL SESSION

9 a.m. - Executive Conference Room
Level Three

1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, CA 92821

NEXT RESOLUTION NO. OB 2017-08
             
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL
 

1. Public Comment - This is the portion of the meeting for any member of the public to
address the Oversight Board on any matter not on the agenda that is within the subject
matter jurisdiction of the board. The Brown Act, with limited exception, does not allow
the board or staff to discuss issues brought forth under Public Comment. Comments
should be limited to 5 minutes per person.

 
POLICY ITEMS
 
DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS
 

2.   January 20, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes - Approve.
 

3.   Consideration of Approval of Execution and Delivery of an Agreement to
Terminate Disposition and Development Agreement as to Commercial Center
Component (Gateway Center) and Related Payoff Agreement and Taking
Certain Related Actions - Adopt Resolution OB 2017-08 to approve an Agreement
to Terminate Disposition and Development Agreement as to Commercial Center
Component and Related Payoff Agreement and Taking Certain Related Actions.

 
4.   Sale of Successor Agency Owned Property Located at 323 N. Brea Blvd. - Adopt 

Resolution OB 2017-09 Authorizing the Sale of Real Property to the
Recommended Buyer.

 



MEMBER REPORTS / ANNOUNCEMENTS
 
ADJOURNMENT
 

 
This agenda contains a brief general description of each item the Oversight Board will consider. The City Clerk has on file copies
of written documentation relating to each item of business on this Agenda available for public inspection. Contact the City Clerk’s
Office at (714) 990-7756 or view the Agenda and related materials on the City’s website at www.cityofbrea.net. Materials related
to an item on this agenda submitted to the Oversight Board after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office at 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, CA during normal business hours. Such documents may also
be available on the City’s website subject to staff’s ability to post documents before the meeting.

Special Accommodations
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please
contact the City Clerk’s Office at (714) 990-7757. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable City staff to make
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. (28 CFR 35.102.35.104 ADA Title II)

2 

Oversight Board Agenda March 31, 2017

http://www.cityofbrea.net


Agenda Item   2. 
City of Brea

BOARD COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Chair and Board Members

FROM: City Manager, 

DATE: 03/31/2017

SUBJECT: January 20, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes
 

SIGNATURE BLOCK
Respectfully submitted: Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk

Attachments
01-20-2017 Special Meeting Minutes 



D R A F T
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE

OVERSIGHT BOARD
TO THE CITY OF BREA

AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY
TO THE BREA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MINUTES

January 20, 2017
 

SPECIAL MEETING
9:00 a.m. - Executive Conference Room

Level Three 

 

Present: Chair Bill Gallardo; Vice Chair Brad Mason; Don Parker; Kashu Vyas; Kent Forde; Don
Schweitzer; Keri Bullock 

Staff
Present:

Lee Squire; David Crabtree; Kathie DeRobbio; Cindy Russell; Lillian Harris-Neal; Karen O'Leary 

 

               

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL
Chair Bill Gallardo called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.
Chair Gallardo welcomed new Board Member Keri Bullock, Economic Development Management Analyst II.
 

1. Public Comment - None.
 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS
Board Member Don Schweitzer reported that he would abstain from discussion and voting on Item 4 (Sale of
Successor Agency Owned properties Located at 240 N. Orange Ave. and 112 W. Bracken St.) due to possible
conflict of interest.
 

2. August 2, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes   

 
  Motion was made by Don Parker, seconded by Don Schweitzer to approve the August 2, 2016

Oversight Board Regular Meeting Minutes, as presented. 
 

AYES: Chair Bill Gallardo, Vice Chair Brad Mason, Don Parker, Kashu Vyas, Kent Forde, Don
Schweitzer, Keri Bullock 

Passed 

 

3. September 20, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes.   

 
  Motion was made by Don Schweitzer, seconded by Don Parker to approve the September 20, 2016

Oversight Board Regular Meeting Minutes, as presented. 
 

AYES: Chair Bill Gallardo, Vice Chair Brad Mason, Don Parker, Kashu Vyas, Kent Forde, Don

January 20, 2017 1 

Oversight Board Special Meeting Minutes

  



 
AYES: Chair Bill Gallardo, Vice Chair Brad Mason, Don Parker, Kashu Vyas, Kent Forde, Don

Schweitzer, Keri Bullock 
Passed 

 

4. Sale of Successor Agency Owned Properties Located at 340 N. Orange Ave. and 112 W. Bracken
St.
Economic Development Manager DeRobbio provided an update on the status of the three Successor
Agency owned properties.The sale of 323 N. Brea Blvd. is not ready to be approved and is still in
negotiations. The Successor Agency approved the sales of the Orange Ave. and the Bracken St.
properties pending the approval of the Oversight Board.

Economic Development Manager DeRobbio replied to a question from Board Member Parker regarding
whether the Successor Agency and the Oversight Board must hold public hearings on the sale of the
properties. Economic Development Manger DeRobbio said that she will confer with the City Attorney.

In response to a question about who will benefit from the sales of the properties from Board Member
Mason, Economic Development Manager DeRobbio clarified that the proceeds will go to the County
and are then distributed based on the recipients' percentages of property tax revenue.

  

 
  Motion was made by Don Parker, seconded by Kent Forde to adopt Resolutions OB 2017-01 and 

OB 2017-02 Authorizing the Sale of Real Property located at 340 N. Orange and 112 W. Bracken St.
to the Recommended Buyers. 

 
AYES: Chair Bill Gallardo, Vice Chair Brad Mason, Don Parker, Kashu Vyas, Kent Forde, Keri

Bullock 
Other: Don Schweitzer (ABSTAIN) 
Passed 

 

5. Application of Bond Interest Earnings Towards the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule
(ROPS) 17-18A and 17-18B Bond Payments
Finance Manager Squire explained that this is a recurring item for the annual ROPS. Brea is required by
the trust indenture to apply any interest earned on the reserve funds in excess of the amount required to
be applied to the bond payments.

  

 
  Motion was made by Don Parker, seconded by Keri Bullock to adopt Resolution OB 2017-03

Approving the Application of Alternate Funds (Bond Interest Earnings) Towards ROPS 17-18A and
17-18B Period Bond Payments. 

 
AYES: Chair Bill Gallardo, Vice Chair Brad Mason, Don Parker, Kashu Vyas, Kent Forde, Don

Schweitzer, Keri Bullock 
Passed 

 

6. Second Amendment to the Brea Mall Owner Participation Agreement (OPA)
Finance Manager Squire explained that one of the requirements for getting a Last and Final ROPS
is preparing a defined payment schedule for the remaining enforceable obligations. Brea has negotiated
a defined payment schedule for the Brea Mall OPA that is based on a calculation with a cap of 2% per
year and a "true up" provision in the final year.

In response to questions from Board Members, Finance Manager Squire stated that he was doubtful that
there would be a possibility of overpaying by basing the payment on calculations rather than a fixed
amount, was optimistic that the Department of Finance would approve the amendment and that he was
hesitant to reopen negotiations with the Brea Mall OPA. Finance Manager Squire agreed to consult with
the City Attorney on the language of the "true up" provision.

  

 
  Motion was made by Don Parker, seconded by Vice Chair Brad Mason to adopt Resolution OB

2017-04 Approving the Second Amendment to the Brea Mall Owner Participation Agreement. 

January 20, 2017 2 

Oversight Board Special Meeting Minutes

  



 
AYES: Chair Bill Gallardo, Vice Chair Brad Mason, Don Parker, Kashu Vyas, Kent Forde, Don

Schweitzer, Keri Bullock 
Passed 

 

7. Resolutions Approving the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule
(ROPS 17-18) and the Administrative Budget
Concerning the Administrative Budget, Finance Manager Squire stated that by statute, the Oversight
Board is required to adopt a semi-annual budget for each ROPS period. Based on the annual
administrative costs including attorney services, the semi-annual budget would be $139,695.

In response to Board Member questions, Finance Manager Squire explained that the audit costs were
$8,500 and represented all the work involved with the Successor Agency and were separate from the
audit costs for the City.

Regarding the ROPS payment schedule, Finance Manager Squire explained that three new items were
added to the ROPS this year: the 2nd Amendment to the Brea Mall OPA, the 2016 Refunding Bonds,
and the 2017 Tax Allocation Bonds as placeholders to preserve our right to amend ROPS 17-18B.

In response to Board Member questions, Finance Manager Squire and Administrative Services Director
Russell explained that the Last and Final ROPS only allows for two amendments. One of those is
reserved for the Brea Mall to amend the Last and Final ROPS. The second amendment was claimed by
the Bond Insurer. In order to amend the Last and Final ROPS to include the 2016 Refunding Bonds, the
line item must be on the annual ROPS.

  

 
  Motion was made by Kent Forde, seconded by Keri Bullock to adopt Resolution OB 2017-05

Approving the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 17-18). 
 

AYES: Chair Bill Gallardo, Vice Chair Brad Mason, Don Parker, Kashu Vyas, Kent Forde, Don
Schweitzer, Keri Bullock 

Passed 

 
  Motion was made by Don Schweitzer, seconded by Don Parker to adopt Resolution OB 2017-06

Approving the Administrative Budgets. 
 

AYES: Chair Bill Gallardo, Vice Chair Brad Mason, Don Parker, Kashu Vyas, Kent Forde, Don
Schweitzer, Keri Bullock 

Passed 

 

MEMBER REPORTS / ANNOUNCEMENTS
None.
 

ADJOURNMENT
Chair Bill Gallardo adjourned the meeting at 9:27 a.m.
 

Respectfully submitted, The foregoing minutes are hereby
approved this 31st day of March, 2017

  

______________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk

 

______________________________
Bill Gallardo, Chair

January 20, 2017 3 

Oversight Board Special Meeting Minutes

  



Agenda Item   3. 
City of Brea

BOARD COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Chair and Board Members

FROM: David Crabtree, Community Development Director 

DATE: 03/31/2017

SUBJECT: Consideration of Approval of Execution and Delivery of an Agreement to
Terminate Disposition and Development Agreement as to Commercial
Center Component (Gateway Center) and Related Payoff Agreement and
Taking Certain Related Actions
 

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt resolution to approve an Agreement to Terminate Disposition and Development
Agreement as to Commercial Center Component and related Payoff Agreement and taking
certain related actions.

BACKGROUND
With the elimination of redevelopment in California in 2012, successor agencies to the former
redevelopment agencies have been tasked with the wind-down of the former redevelopment
agencies’ affairs. The proposed actions are in furtherance of the expeditious wind-down of
the affairs of the former Brea Redevelopment Agency (the “Former Agency”).
 
Pursuant to Health and Safety Code (“HSC”) Section 34191.5, the Successor Agency
prepared a long range property management plan (the “LRPMP”) addressing the disposition
of the real properties interests acquired by the Former Agency.  As reflected on the LRPMP
(as Property Interest #5), the Former Agency was, and now the Successor Agency is, the
beneficiary under a Subordinated Deed of Trust and Assignment of Rents (the “Deed of
Trust”).  The Deed of Trust relates to a property commonly known as the “Gateway Center”
(a shopping center located in Downtown Brea).  The Deed of Trust secures certain periodic
payments (the “Participation Payments”) which Brea Gateway Center LP is obligated to
make to the Successor Agency pursuant to a Disposition and Development Agreement (the
“DDA”).  Under the DDA, the Successor Agency is also obligated to make certain payments
to Brea Gateway Center LP, as described below. 
 
The Former Agency entered into the DDA in 1991 with Brea Center Associates, the original
developer.  The DDA outlined the redevelopment of Downtown Brea and included several
components commonly known today as the Gateway Center, Downtown Birch Street, and
the Ash Street Cottages.  There have been three amendments to the DDA, executed in
November 1992, February 1994 and November 1994, respectively. The Gateway Center is
identified in the DDA as the “Commercial Center Component.” The current tenants of the
Gateway Center include Ralphs, Rite Aid, Cost Plus and other businesses.
 
Before Brea Gateway Center LP acquired fee ownership of the Gateway Center, the property



Before Brea Gateway Center LP acquired fee ownership of the Gateway Center, the property
was owned by the Former Agency.  The Former Agency leased the property to Brea
Gateway Center LP’s predecessor under a Ground Lease (the “Lease”).  The Lease included
terms for three categories of rent:  participation rent, refinancing rent, and sale rent. 
 
The DDA, as amended by its second amendment, contemplated the possible sale of the
“Commercial Component”, i.e., the Gateway Center, to Brea Gateway Center LP, and
provided that, in the event of such sale, Brea Gateway Center LP’s obligation to make
 payments under the provisions relating to the participation rent, refinancing rent, and sale
rent would survive termination of the Lease.   After Brea Gateway Center LP became the fee
owner of the Gateway Center in 1994, it executed the Deed of Trust, in favor of the Former
Agency, to provide security for the Brea Gateway Center LP’s payment obligations under the
DDA. 
 
Participation Payment to Successor Agency; Brea Gateway Center LP’s Offer for Early
Payoff – Simply described, the periodic participation rent payments are calculated based on
a percentage of the performance of shopping center income (e.g., tenant rents), less certain
operating expenses.  In contrast, the refinancing rent and sale rent would become payable
only if Brea Gateway Center LP refinanced or sold the property to an unrelated third party. 
Historically, the Successor Agency has only received participation rent.  No triggering of the
refinancing rent or sale rent has ever occurred over the term of the agreement.
 
By the terms of the agreements, without any modification, the final participation rent payment
would be made in 2048.  The Successor Agency would have to continue to expend
resources to administer the related DDA provisions. 
 
When the LRPMP was being prepared, the State Department of Finance (the “DOF”) and
Successor Agency Staff discussed the possibility of the Successor Agency disposing its
interest under the Deed of Trust, through a sale to, or a pay-off by, the Brea Gateway Center
LP.  However, in light of the DOF’s deadline to finalize the LRPMP for approval (by the end of
December 2015), the Successor Agency was not in a position to engage in, and complete
the necessary negotiation with, Brea Gateway Center LP for such a transaction. 
 
In the LRPMP, it is listed that the Successor Agency would continue to receive the
Participation Payments under the DDA and the Deed of Trust.  However, that does not
prohibit the possibility of an early pay-off by Brea Gateway Center LP and a corresponding
termination of the DDA with respect to the Commercial Center Component, if approved by
the Successor Agency and the Oversight Board.  HSC Section 34181(e) provides that the
Oversight Board may approve any modification to or early termination of an agreement with
a private party if the Oversight Board finds that such modification or early termination would
be in the best interests of the taxing entities.  Such Oversight Board action would be subject
to the DOF’s approval.
 
At this time, Brea Gateway Center LP has put forth an offer to pay a lump sum of $8,050,000
for an early payoff of the Participation Payments.   Brea Gateway Center LP calculated this
payoff amount assuming a February 15, 2017 payoff date.  However, the Successor Agency
will not be able to consummate the transaction until the DOF has issued its approval.  Brea
Gateway Center LP has agreed to proceed with the agreement that, to the extent it pays any
further scheduled participation rent between February 15, 2017 and the transaction closing
date (the “Interim Participation Rent Amounts”), the payment otherwise due for the payoff will
be reduced by the Interim Participation Rent Amounts.



 
Successor Agency Payment Obligation under DDA Pertaining to CFD – Section 201.9 of
the DDA (as amended by the second amendment) provides that if the City or the Former
Agency ever formed a community facilities district (a “CFD”) affecting the  Commercial
Center Component ( i.e., Gateway Center site), then the Former Agency (and now the
Successor Agency) would be obligated to make certain periodic payments to the Brea
Gateway Center LP, calculated based on a portion of the amount that Brea Gateway Center
LP must pay for the CFD special tax (attributable to the parcels where the Ralphs and
Rite-Aid stores are located). 
 
In 1996, a CFD was formed, triggering the Successor Agency’s obligation to make this
CFD-related payment.  Staff estimates that the Successor Agency’s CFD-related payments
between now and the related final payment date in 2021 would total approximately $135,000
(the “CFD Offset”).
 
It is proposed that Brea Gateway Center LP’s payment otherwise due to the Successor
Agency for the payoff be reduced by the $135,000 CFD Offset.  This way, any further
Successor Agency obligation to make payments under Section 201.9 of the DDA would be
extinguished at the same time. 

DISCUSSION
Pursuant to Brea Gateway Center LP’s offer, the net amount to be received by the
Successor Agency will be based on this $8,050,000 offer amount, minus the $135,000 CFD
Offset and any offset for Interim Participation Rent Amounts, as discussed above. 
 
The payoff will be implemented pursuant to a Payoff Agreement and Joint Escrow
Instructions (the “Payoff Agreement”), in the form attached to the Resolution as an Exhibit. 
The termination of the DDA as to the Commercial Center Component will be effected by an
Terminate Disposition and Development Agreement as to Commercial Center Component
(the “DDA Termination Agreement”), in the form attached to the Payoff Agreement as
Attachment A.  The Successor Agency will also execute a Substitution of Trustee and Full
Reconveyance (the “Deed of Trust Reconveyance”), to evidence the termination its rights
and interests under the Deed of Trust upon the payoff.  
 
By adopting the attached Resolution, the Oversight Board will take action to approve the
Successor Agency’s execution and delivery of the Payoff Agreement, the DDA Termination
Agreement and the Deed of Trust Reconveyance.  Pursuant to law, the Oversight Board
resolution will become effective only upon the DOF’s approval (or deemed approval).   
 
It is contemplated that, upon receipt of the DOF’s approval, Successor Agency and Brea
Gateway Center will work with a title and escrow company to open an escrow to complete
the transaction.  After the close of escrow, the Successor Agency will transmit the proceeds
from the transaction to the County Auditor-Controller, who will disburse the money to the
taxing entities, including the City. 



FISCAL IMPACT
Staff requested Keyser Marston Associates (“KMA”) to provide an analysis of Gateway
Center LP’s payoff offer.  A summary of KMA’s findings is attached as Exhibit A to this
report.  In summary, KMA finds that the $8.05 million pay-off offer merits approval.  Per
KMA’s analysis, the offer covers the net present value of future participation rent payable to
the Successor Agency (estimated by KMA to be $5.18 million), and the intrinsic value to Brea
Gateway Center with the removal of the burden imposed by the DDA restrictions (including
freedom for future sale, or refinancing of the property without considerations with respect to
the sale rent or the refinancing rent).          
 
The proposed transaction would also extinguish the Successor Agency’s obligation to make
future CFD-related payments (estimated to be $135,000) under the DDA.          
 
This payoff will result in a one-time receipt of approximately $8 million to the Successor
Agency, which will then will be transmitted to the County Auditor-Controller for disbursement
to the taxing entities.

SIGNATURE BLOCK
Respectfully submitted:  William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  David M. Crabtree, AICP, Community Development Director
Concurrence:  Cindy Russell, Administrative Services Director
Concurrence:  Lee Squire, Financial Services Manager

Attachments
Resolution OB 2017-08 
Reso No.SA 2017-02 
KMA Buyout Memo 2.24.17 
Sections of lease and DDA amendments 



 

1 
 

March 31, 2017 
RESO. OB 2017-08 

RESOLUTION NO. OB 2017-08 

A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY TO THE BREA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY APPROVING 
THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY’S EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN 
AGREEMENT TO TERMINATE DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT AS TO COMMERCIAL CENTER COMPONENT AND A 
RELATED PAYOFF AGREEMENT AND TAKING CERTAIN RELATED 
ACTIONS 

A. RECITALS: 

(i) The Brea Redevelopment Agency (the “Former Agency”) was a 
redevelopment agency duly formed pursuant to the Community Redevelopment Law, set 
forth in Part 1 of Division 24 of the California Health and Safety Code (“HSC”);   

(ii) Pursuant to AB X1 26 (enacted in June 2011) and the California Supreme 
Court’s decision in California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Ana Matosantos, et 
al., 53 Cal.4th 231 (2011), the Former Agency was dissolved as of February 1, 2012, the 
Successor Agency to the Brea Redevelopment Agency (the “Successor Agency”) was 
constituted as the successor entity to the Former Agency, and an oversight board of the 
Successor Agency (the “Oversight Board”) was established; 

(iii) AB X1 26 added Part 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161) and Part 1.85 
(commencing with Section 34170) to Division 24 of the HSC.  Such Parts 1.8 and 1.85, 
together with any amendments and supplements thereto enacted from time to time, are 
collectively referred to herein as the “Dissolution Act”; 

(iv) Pursuant to the Dissolution Act, all assets, properties, and contracts of the 
Former Agency have transferred to the control of the Successor Agency by operation of 
law; 

(v) As part of the Former Agency’s program to redevelop a project area known 
and designated as the Redevelopment Project AB, the Former Agency entered into a 
Disposition and Development Agreement in October 1991 (the “Original DDA”), by and 
between the Former Agency and Brea Center Associates (the “Original Developer”), 
relating to a site consisting of multiple components, including among them, a 
“Commercial Center Component”;   

(vi) The Original DDA has been amended and supplemented by an Amendment 
No. 1 to the Disposition and Development Agreement, executed in November 1992 (“DDA 
Amendment No. 1”), an Amendment No. 2 to the Disposition and Development 
Agreement, executed in February 1994 (“DDA Amendment No. 2”), and an Amendment 
No. 3 to the Disposition and Development Agreement, executed in November 1994 (“DDA 
Amendment No. 3”), each by and among the Former Agency, Watt-Craig Associates 
Limited Partnership (“Watt-Craig”) on the one hand as the successor to the Original 
Developer with respect to the Commercial Center Component and Baywood Homes-
Victoria on the other hand as the successor to the Original Developer with respect to the 



 

2 
 

March 31, 2017 
RESO. OB 2017-08 

“Housing Component” (the Original DDA, as so amended and supplemented, being 
referred to herein as the “DDA”);   

(vii) The Former Agency, as landlord, and Watt-Craig, as tenant, entered into a 
Ground Lease, dated as of May 12, 1994 (the “Lease”), with respect to the Commercial 
Center Component. 

(viii) Pursuant to Sections 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4 of the Lease, Watt-Craig agreed to 
make certain payments (referred to in the Lease as “Participation Rent,” “Refinancing 
Rent” and “Sale Rent,” and collectively referred to herein as the “Participation 
Payments”) in accordance with the terms of provisions of Sections 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5 and 
3.6 of the Lease; 

(ix) Pursuant to the provisions of DDA Amendment No. 2 and the Lease, the 
final Participation Payment (the “Final Participation Payment Date”) was scheduled to 
take place in the year 2048; 

(x) Pursuant to the DDA, the Former Agency granted Watt-Craig an option to 
purchase the Commercial Center Component but Watt-Craig was required to continue to 
pay the Participation Payments with respect to the Gateway Center Property for a number 
of years after a purchase under the option; 

(xi) Watt-Craig exercised its option to purchase the Commercial Center 
Component in 1995, and assigned its rights to purchase the Commercial Center 
Component to Brea Gateway Center LP, an affiliate entity of Watt-Craig, and, as the 
result, Brea Gateway Center LP became the fee title owner to the Commercial Center 
Component pursuant to the exercised option; 

(xii) Brea Gateway Center LP executed a Subordinated Deed of Trust and 
Assignment of Rents and Request for Special Notice, dated as of August 4, 1995 (the 
“Deed of Trust”), creating a security interest in the Commercial Center Component to 
secure Brea Gateway Center LP’s obligations to make Participation Payments to the 
Former Agency; 

(xiii) Brea Gateway Center LP has made an offer (the “Prepayment Offer”) to 
make a lump sum payment, in the approximate amount of $8 million, to prepay all future 
Participation Payments in full and effect a termination of the DDA with respect to 
Commercial Center Component (including the termination of the Successor Agency’s 
obligation to make payments to Brea Gateway Center LP under Section 201.9 of the DDA, 
as amended by Section 6 of DDA Amendment No. 2); 

(xiv) In connection with the Prepayment Offer, there has been presented to the 
Oversight Board forms of the following: (i) a Payoff Agreement and Joint Escrow 
Instructions (the “Payoff Agreement”), and (b) an Agreement to Terminate Disposition 
and Development Agreement as to Commercial Center Component (“DDA Termination 
Agreement”) as Attachment A to the Payoff Agreement, and (c) a Substitution of Trustee 
and Full Reconveyance (the “Deed of Trust Reconveyance”) as Attachment B to the 
Payoff Agreement; 



 

3 
 

March 31, 2017 
RESO. OB 2017-08 

(xv) HSC Section 34181(e) provides that the Oversight Board may approve a 
modification to or early termination of agreements with a private party if the Oversight 
Board finds that such modification or early termination would be in the best interests of 
the taxing entities;  

(xvi) The Oversight Board finds that acceptance of the Prepayment offer would 
reduce liabilities and increase net revenues to the taxing entities, and it is in the best 
interests of the Successor Agency and the affected taxing entities to accept the 
Prepayment offer and approve the Successor Agency’s execution and delivery of the 
Payoff Agreement and the DDA Termination Agreement; 

B. RESOLUTION: 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it found, determined and resolved by the Oversight Board 
of the Successor Agency to the Brea Redevelopment Agency, as follows: 

1. The above recitals are true and correct and are a substantive part of this 
Resolution. 

2. The Oversight Board hereby approves the Successor Agency’s execution 
and delivery of:  (i) the Payoff Agreement, substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto, (ii) 
the DDA Termination Agreement, substantially in the form attached to the Payoff 
Agreement, and (iii) the Deed of Trust Reconveyance, substantially in the form attached 
to the Payoff Agreement. 

3. For the purposes of HSC Section 34181(e), the Oversight Board finds and 
determines that the Successor Agency’s acceptance of the Prepayment Offer, and the 
execution and delivery of the Payoff Agreement, the DDA Termination Agreement and 
the Deed of Trust Reconveyance are in the best interests of the taxing entities.  

4. The officers and staff of the Successor Agency are hereby authorized, 
jointly and severally, to do all things (including but not limited to the execution of any 
certificates or other instruments) which they may deem necessary or proper to effectuate 
the purposes of this Resolution, the Prepayment Agreement, the DDA Termination 
Agreement and the Deed of Trust Reconveyance. 



 

4 
 

March 31, 2017 
RESO. OB 2017-08 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 31st day of March, 2017. 

 

  
________________________________            
Bill Gallardo, Chair 

 

 

ATTEST:   

 

 

____________________________ 
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 

  



 
I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing Resolution was passed at a special meeting of the Oversight Board for the 

Successor Agency to the Brea Redevelopment Agency, held on the 31st day of March, 

2017, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

Dated: March 31, 2017 

 

  
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Prepayment Agreement  
(with DDA Termination Agreement as Attachment A,  
and Deed of Trust Recovenyance as Attachment B) 

 
(in substantial final form) 

 
(see attached) 

 





















 

   

12800-0001\2031223v9.doc  RWG DRAFT: 2/28/2017 

 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 

AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

 

City of Brea 

1 Civic Center Circle 

Brea, CA  92821 

Attention:  City Clerk 

  

 [SPACE ABOVE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY] 

 

[This document is exempt from Recording Fees  

pursuant to California Government Code Section 27383] 

 

AGREEMENT TO TERMINATE DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

AS TO COMMERCIAL CENTER COMPONENT 

This Agreement to Terminate Disposition and Development Agreement as to 

Commercial Center Component (this “Agreement”), dated as of _____________, 2017, is 

entered into by and between the Successor Agency to the Brea Redevelopment Agency, a public 

body of the State of California (the “Successor Agency”) and Brea Gateway Center, L.P., an 

Illinois limited partnership (“Brea Gateway Center LP”).  

This Agreement amends the DDA (as defined and described below).  Capitalized terms 

used but not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the DDA. 

Recitals 

A. The Brea Redevelopment Agency (the “Former Agency”) was a redevelopment 

agency formed pursuant to the Community Redevelopment Law, set forth in Part 1 of Division 24 

of the California Health and Safety Code (“HSC”). 

B. Pursuant to AB X1 26 (enacted in June 2011) and the California Supreme Court’s 

decision in California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Ana Matosantos, et al., 53 Cal.4th 231 

(2011), the Former Agency was dissolved as of February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency was 

constituted as the successor entity to the Former Agency. 

C. AB X1 26 added to Part 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161) and Part 1.85 

(commencing with Section 34170) to Division 24 the HSC.  Such Parts 1.8 and 1.85, together with 

any amendments and supplements thereto enacted from time to time, are collectively referred to 

herein as the “Dissolution Act.” 

D. Pursuant to the Dissolution Act, all assets, properties, and contracts of the Former 

Agency have transferred to the control of the Successor Agency by operation of law. 

E. As part of the Former Agency’s program to redevelop a project area known and 

designated as the Redevelopment Project AB, the Former Agency entered into a Disposition and 

Development Agreement in October 1991 (the “Original DDA”), by and between the Former 

Agency and Brea Center Associates (the “Original Developer”).  The Original DDA relates to a 



 

 2  

12800-0001\2031223v9.doc    

 

site consisting of multiple components, including among them, a “Commercial Center 

Component” as described in the Original DDA.  The Original DDA has been amended and 

supplemented by an Amendment No. 1 to the Disposition and Development Agreement, executed 

in November 1992 (“DDA Amendment No. 1”), an Amendment No. 2 to the Disposition and 

Development Agreement, executed in February 1994 (“DDA Amendment No. 2”), and an 

Amendment No. 3 to the Disposition and Development Agreement, executed in November 1994 

(“DDA Amendment No. 3”), each by and among the Former Agency, Watt-Craig Associates 

Limited Partnership (“Watt-Craig”) on the one hand as the successor to the Original Developer 

with respect to the Commercial Center Component and Baywood Homes-Victoria on the other 

hand as the successor to the Original Developer with respect to the “Housing Component.”  The 

Original DDA, as so amended and supplemented, is referred to herein as the “DDA.”  The Original 

DDA, DDA Amendment No. 1, DDA Amendment No. 2 and DDA Amendment No. 3 are each 

recorded in the Official Records of the County, as Document No. 91-562200 (recorded on October 

15, 1991), Document No. 94-0158683 (recorded on March 4, 1994), Document No. 94-0158684 

(recorded on March 4, 1994) and Document No. 94-0694881 (recorded on December 1, 1994), 

respectively. 

F. The legal description of the Commercial Component is set forth in Exhibit A 

hereto. 

G. The Former Agency, as landlord, and Watt-Craig, as tenant, entered into a Ground 

Lease, dated as of May 12, 1994 (the “Lease”), with respect to the Commercial Center Component. 

H. Pursuant to Sections 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4 of the Lease, Watt-Craig agreed to make 

certain payments (referred to in the Lease as “Participation Rent,” “Refinancing Rent” and “Sale 

Rent,” and collectively referred to herein as the “Participation Payments”) in accordance with 

the terms of provisions of Sections 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5 and 3.6 of the Lease.  Pursuant to the provisions 

of DDA Amendment No. 2 and the Lease, the final Participation Payment (the “Final 

Participation Payment Date”) was scheduled to take place in the year 2048. 

I. Pursuant to the DDA, the Former Agency granted Watt-Craig an option to purchase 

the Commercial Center Component but Watt-Craig was required to continue to pay the 

Participation Payments with respect to the Gateway Center Property for a number of years after a 

purchase under the option. 

J. Watt-Craig exercised its option to purchase the Commercial Center Component in 

1995, and assigned its rights to purchase the Commercial Center Component to Brea Gateway 

Center LP, an affiliate entity of Watt-Craig.  Brea Gateway Center LP then became the fee title 

owner to the Commercial Center Component pursuant to the exercised option. 

K. Brea Gateway Center LP executed a Subordinated Deed of Trust and Assignment 

of Rents and Request for Special Notice, dated as of August 4, 1995 and recorded in the Official 

Records of the County, as Document No. 95-0349470 (recorded on August 14, 1995) (the “Deed 

of Trust”), creating a security interest in the Commercial Center Component to secure the Brea 

Gateway Center LP’s obligations to make Participation Payments to the Former Agency. 



 

 3  

12800-0001\2031223v9.doc    

 

L. The Successor Agency affirms that the construction and improvements required to 

be completed by the Developer with respect to the Commercial Center Component under the DDA 

have been completed, and the recordation of this Agreement has the same force and effect as the 

recordation of a Certificate of Completion with respect to each Parcel that constitutes the 

Commercial Center Component.  

M. Brea Gateway Center LP has made, and the Successor Agency has accepted, a lump 

sum of $___________*, as prepayment and satisfaction in full of all future Participation Payments 

(the “Prepayment”) and effect a termination of the DDA with respect to Commercial Center 

Component (including the termination of the Successor Agency’s obligation to make payments to 

Brea Gateway Center LP under Section 201.9 of the DDA, as amended by Section 6 of DDA 

Amendment No. 2). 

N. The City Council of the City of Brea, acting as the governing body of the Successor 

Agency, adopted its Resolution No. ______, on ______, 2017, authorizing the Successor Agency’s 

execution and delivery of documents relating to the Prepayment, including this Amendment. 

O. The Oversight Board adopted its Resolution No. _________, on ________, 2017 

(the “Oversight Board Resolution”) approving the Successor Agency’s execution and delivery 

of documents relating to the Prepayment, including this Amendment.  The California State 

Department of Finance issued its letter, dated _________, 2017, approving the Oversight Board 

Resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION 

OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES AND AGREEMENTS HEREIN, CONTAINED DO 

AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. As of the dated date of this Agreement, and with regard to the Commercial 

Center Component, the DDA shall be deemed completed and terminated.  The parties hereto shall 

execute such other and further documents as may be reasonably necessary to reflect such 

termination. 

Section 2. The parties hereby agree and confirm that this Agreement shall have no 

effect on the provisions of the DDA pertaining to any property other than the Commercial Center 

Component (the “Other Properties”).  

Section 3. This Agreement shall be governed by, interpreted under, construed and 

enforced, in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  

                                                 
*  This dollar amount will be inserted prior to signing of the agreement, as it will change depending how 

soon the DOF will issue its approval and the parties will be able to open the escrow thereafter..  It will 

be equal to $8,050,000 minus (i) the monthly Participation Payments that Brea Gateway Center paid to 

the Agency between 2/15/2017 and the escrow open date, and (ii) $134,467.37, representing the 

estimated payments that the Successor Agency would have to pay Brea Gateway Center pursuant to 

Section 201.9 of the DDA, as amended by Section 6 of DDA Amendment No. 2 between 2017 and 

2021.     



 

 4  

12800-0001\2031223v9.doc    

 

 

Section 4. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and each 

of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original; and all such counterparts 

shall together constitute but one and the same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 

duly authorized officers. 

 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE   

BREA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

 

 

By         

  Cecilia Hupp 

  Mayor of the City of Brea 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Lillian Harris-Neal 

City Clerk of the City of Brea 

 

 

 

BREA GATEWAY CENTER, L.P., 
an Illinois limited partnership 

 

 By:         

 

 Print Name:        

 

 Title:         

 

 



 

   
12800-0001\2031223v9.doc 

 

 

 

State of California ) 

County of ______ ) 

On _________________________, before me,       , 
 (insert name and title of the officer) 

Notary Public, personally appeared       , who proved to me on 

the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within 

instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 

capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity 

upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature        (Seal) 

  

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the 

identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is 
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 



 

   
12800-0001\2031223v9.doc 

 

 

State of California ) 

County of _________ ) 

On _________________________, before me,       , 
 (insert name and title of the officer) 

Notary Public, personally appeared       , who proved to me on 

the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within 

instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 

capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity 

upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature        (Seal) 

 

 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the 
identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is 

attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 



 

   
12800-0001\2031223v9.doc 

EXHIBIT A 

(Agreement to Terminate Disposition and Development Agreement 

as to Commercial Center Component) 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

Parcels 1 to 11, inclusive, of Parcel Map No. 91-217 in the City of Brea, County of Orange, State 

of California, as per Map filed in Book 280, Page(s) 44 to 48 inclusive, of Parcel Maps, in the 

office of the County Recorder of said County. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM all coal, oil, petroleum, natural gas and other hydrocarbons upon, in 

or under said land, but without the right of surface entry, as reserved by Ontario Investment 

Company in deed recorded November 28, 1910 in Book 194, Page 243 of Deeds, records of Orange 

County, and other deeds of record.  

 







































 

   

12800-0001\2031223v9.doc  RWG DRAFT: 2/28/2017 

 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 

AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

 

City of Brea 

1 Civic Center Circle 

Brea, CA  92821 

Attention:  City Clerk 

  

 [SPACE ABOVE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY] 

 

[This document is exempt from Recording Fees  

pursuant to California Government Code Section 27383] 

 

AGREEMENT TO TERMINATE DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

AS TO COMMERCIAL CENTER COMPONENT 

This Agreement to Terminate Disposition and Development Agreement as to 

Commercial Center Component (this “Agreement”), dated as of _____________, 2017, is 

entered into by and between the Successor Agency to the Brea Redevelopment Agency, a public 

body of the State of California (the “Successor Agency”) and Brea Gateway Center, L.P., an 

Illinois limited partnership (“Brea Gateway Center LP”).  

This Agreement amends the DDA (as defined and described below).  Capitalized terms 

used but not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the DDA. 

Recitals 

A. The Brea Redevelopment Agency (the “Former Agency”) was a redevelopment 

agency formed pursuant to the Community Redevelopment Law, set forth in Part 1 of Division 24 

of the California Health and Safety Code (“HSC”). 

B. Pursuant to AB X1 26 (enacted in June 2011) and the California Supreme Court’s 

decision in California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Ana Matosantos, et al., 53 Cal.4th 231 

(2011), the Former Agency was dissolved as of February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency was 

constituted as the successor entity to the Former Agency. 

C. AB X1 26 added to Part 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161) and Part 1.85 

(commencing with Section 34170) to Division 24 the HSC.  Such Parts 1.8 and 1.85, together with 

any amendments and supplements thereto enacted from time to time, are collectively referred to 

herein as the “Dissolution Act.” 

D. Pursuant to the Dissolution Act, all assets, properties, and contracts of the Former 

Agency have transferred to the control of the Successor Agency by operation of law. 

E. As part of the Former Agency’s program to redevelop a project area known and 

designated as the Redevelopment Project AB, the Former Agency entered into a Disposition and 

Development Agreement in October 1991 (the “Original DDA”), by and between the Former 

Agency and Brea Center Associates (the “Original Developer”).  The Original DDA relates to a 



 

 2  

12800-0001\2031223v9.doc    

 

site consisting of multiple components, including among them, a “Commercial Center 

Component” as described in the Original DDA.  The Original DDA has been amended and 

supplemented by an Amendment No. 1 to the Disposition and Development Agreement, executed 

in November 1992 (“DDA Amendment No. 1”), an Amendment No. 2 to the Disposition and 

Development Agreement, executed in February 1994 (“DDA Amendment No. 2”), and an 

Amendment No. 3 to the Disposition and Development Agreement, executed in November 1994 

(“DDA Amendment No. 3”), each by and among the Former Agency, Watt-Craig Associates 

Limited Partnership (“Watt-Craig”) on the one hand as the successor to the Original Developer 

with respect to the Commercial Center Component and Baywood Homes-Victoria on the other 

hand as the successor to the Original Developer with respect to the “Housing Component.”  The 

Original DDA, as so amended and supplemented, is referred to herein as the “DDA.”  The Original 

DDA, DDA Amendment No. 1, DDA Amendment No. 2 and DDA Amendment No. 3 are each 

recorded in the Official Records of the County, as Document No. 91-562200 (recorded on October 

15, 1991), Document No. 94-0158683 (recorded on March 4, 1994), Document No. 94-0158684 

(recorded on March 4, 1994) and Document No. 94-0694881 (recorded on December 1, 1994), 

respectively. 

F. The legal description of the Commercial Component is set forth in Exhibit A 

hereto. 

G. The Former Agency, as landlord, and Watt-Craig, as tenant, entered into a Ground 

Lease, dated as of May 12, 1994 (the “Lease”), with respect to the Commercial Center Component. 

H. Pursuant to Sections 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4 of the Lease, Watt-Craig agreed to make 

certain payments (referred to in the Lease as “Participation Rent,” “Refinancing Rent” and “Sale 

Rent,” and collectively referred to herein as the “Participation Payments”) in accordance with 

the terms of provisions of Sections 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5 and 3.6 of the Lease.  Pursuant to the provisions 

of DDA Amendment No. 2 and the Lease, the final Participation Payment (the “Final 

Participation Payment Date”) was scheduled to take place in the year 2048. 

I. Pursuant to the DDA, the Former Agency granted Watt-Craig an option to purchase 

the Commercial Center Component but Watt-Craig was required to continue to pay the 

Participation Payments with respect to the Gateway Center Property for a number of years after a 

purchase under the option. 

J. Watt-Craig exercised its option to purchase the Commercial Center Component in 

1995, and assigned its rights to purchase the Commercial Center Component to Brea Gateway 

Center LP, an affiliate entity of Watt-Craig.  Brea Gateway Center LP then became the fee title 

owner to the Commercial Center Component pursuant to the exercised option. 

K. Brea Gateway Center LP executed a Subordinated Deed of Trust and Assignment 

of Rents and Request for Special Notice, dated as of August 4, 1995 and recorded in the Official 

Records of the County, as Document No. 95-0349470 (recorded on August 14, 1995) (the “Deed 

of Trust”), creating a security interest in the Commercial Center Component to secure the Brea 

Gateway Center LP’s obligations to make Participation Payments to the Former Agency. 



 

 3  

12800-0001\2031223v9.doc    

 

L. The Successor Agency affirms that the construction and improvements required to 

be completed by the Developer with respect to the Commercial Center Component under the DDA 

have been completed, and the recordation of this Agreement has the same force and effect as the 

recordation of a Certificate of Completion with respect to each Parcel that constitutes the 

Commercial Center Component.  

M. Brea Gateway Center LP has made, and the Successor Agency has accepted, a lump 

sum of $___________*, as prepayment and satisfaction in full of all future Participation Payments 

(the “Prepayment”) and effect a termination of the DDA with respect to Commercial Center 

Component (including the termination of the Successor Agency’s obligation to make payments to 

Brea Gateway Center LP under Section 201.9 of the DDA, as amended by Section 6 of DDA 

Amendment No. 2). 

N. The City Council of the City of Brea, acting as the governing body of the Successor 

Agency, adopted its Resolution No. ______, on ______, 2017, authorizing the Successor Agency’s 

execution and delivery of documents relating to the Prepayment, including this Amendment. 

O. The Oversight Board adopted its Resolution No. _________, on ________, 2017 

(the “Oversight Board Resolution”) approving the Successor Agency’s execution and delivery 

of documents relating to the Prepayment, including this Amendment.  The California State 

Department of Finance issued its letter, dated _________, 2017, approving the Oversight Board 

Resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION 

OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES AND AGREEMENTS HEREIN, CONTAINED DO 

AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. As of the dated date of this Agreement, and with regard to the Commercial 

Center Component, the DDA shall be deemed completed and terminated.  The parties hereto shall 

execute such other and further documents as may be reasonably necessary to reflect such 

termination. 

Section 2. The parties hereby agree and confirm that this Agreement shall have no 

effect on the provisions of the DDA pertaining to any property other than the Commercial Center 

Component (the “Other Properties”).  

Section 3. This Agreement shall be governed by, interpreted under, construed and 

enforced, in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  

                                                 
*  This dollar amount will be inserted prior to signing of the agreement, as it will change depending how 

soon the DOF will issue its approval and the parties will be able to open the escrow thereafter..  It will 

be equal to $8,050,000 minus (i) the monthly Participation Payments that Brea Gateway Center paid to 

the Agency between 2/15/2017 and the escrow open date, and (ii) $134,467.37, representing the 

estimated payments that the Successor Agency would have to pay Brea Gateway Center pursuant to 

Section 201.9 of the DDA, as amended by Section 6 of DDA Amendment No. 2 between 2017 and 

2021.     



 

 4  

12800-0001\2031223v9.doc    

 

 

Section 4. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and each 

of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original; and all such counterparts 

shall together constitute but one and the same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 

duly authorized officers. 

 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE   

BREA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

 

 

By         

  Cecilia Hupp 

  Mayor of the City of Brea 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Lillian Harris-Neal 

City Clerk of the City of Brea 

 

 

 

BREA GATEWAY CENTER, L.P., 
an Illinois limited partnership 

 

 By:         

 

 Print Name:        

 

 Title:         

 

 



 

   
12800-0001\2031223v9.doc 

 

 

 

State of California ) 

County of ______ ) 

On _________________________, before me,       , 
 (insert name and title of the officer) 

Notary Public, personally appeared       , who proved to me on 

the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within 

instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 

capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity 

upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature        (Seal) 

  

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the 

identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is 
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 



 

   
12800-0001\2031223v9.doc 

 

 

State of California ) 

County of _________ ) 

On _________________________, before me,       , 
 (insert name and title of the officer) 

Notary Public, personally appeared       , who proved to me on 

the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within 

instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 

capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity 

upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature        (Seal) 

 

 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the 
identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is 

attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 



 

   
12800-0001\2031223v9.doc 

EXHIBIT A 

(Agreement to Terminate Disposition and Development Agreement 

as to Commercial Center Component) 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

Parcels 1 to 11, inclusive, of Parcel Map No. 91-217 in the City of Brea, County of Orange, State 

of California, as per Map filed in Book 280, Page(s) 44 to 48 inclusive, of Parcel Maps, in the 

office of the County Recorder of said County. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM all coal, oil, petroleum, natural gas and other hydrocarbons upon, in 

or under said land, but without the right of surface entry, as reserved by Ontario Investment 

Company in deed recorded November 28, 1910 in Book 194, Page 243 of Deeds, records of Orange 

County, and other deeds of record.  

 











 

500 SOUTH GRAND AVENUE, SUITE 1480  LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA  90071  PHONE 213.622.8095 
 1702017:BRE; JLR 
WWW.KEYSERMARSTON.COM 10800.001.118 

 

 

 
 
 
 

ADVISORS IN: 
Real Estate 

Redevelopment 
Affordable Housing 

Economic Development 
 

SAN FRANCISCO 
A. Jerry Keyser 

Timothy C. Kelly 
Kate Earle Funk 
Debbie M. Kern 

Reed T. Kawahara 
David Doezema 

 
LOS ANGELES 

Kathleen H. Head 
James A. Rabe 

Gregory D. Soo-Hoo 
Kevin E. Engstrom 

Julie L. Romey 
 

SAN DIEGO 
Paul C. Marra 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To: David Crabtree, Community Development Director 
City of Brea 

From: Julie Romey 

  Date: February 24, 2017 

  Subject: Proposed Brea Gateway Center Payoff Agreement 

The City of Brea (City) staff has requested that Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. (KMA) 
review the proposed payoff agreement for the Successor Agency’s interest in the Brea 
Gateway Center (Property) that has been proposed by Brea Gateway Center LP (Owner).  
KMA reviewed the correspondence between the City and Owner as well as discussed 
methodology with the Owner’s representative and the City’s Legal Counsel.  The 
following summarizes the KMA findings and conclusions. 

BACKGROUND STATEMENT 

In 1991, the Brea Redevelopment Agency (Agency) entered into a Disposition and 
Development Agreement (Agreement) with Brea Center Associates, the original 
developer.  Since then, there have been three amendments to the Agreement.  The 
Agency ground leased the Property to Brea Center Associates until 1994 when Brea 
Gateway Center LP acquire fee ownership of the Property through an option.  Watt-
Craig was the majority stakeholder of the ownership entity at the time the Property was 
acquired.  Watt-Craig has since sold its majority stake in the ownership entity to AFL-CIO 
Building Investment Trust (AFL-CIO BIT), for which PNC Realty Investors, Inc. serves as 
the trustee.  Watt-Craig, however, has continued to retain a small portion of the 
partnership interest. 

  



David Crabtree, City of Brea February 24, 2017 
Proposed Brea Gateway Center Payoff Agreement Page 2 

 

 1702017:BRE; JLR 
 10800.001.118 

 

The Property was sold by the Agency with the condition that participation payments 
payable pursuant to the terms of the Agreement would continue to be paid to the 
Agency until 2048; and that the participation payments would be secured by a deed of 
trust.   The following summarizes the Agency’s continued interest in the Property since 
1994: 

Payment Type Definition Termination 
Participation Rent 25% of Net Spendable 

Income; however, if 
Property is sold, the 
Participation Rent is 
lowered to 10% of net 
Spendable Income 

Continues through 2048 
regardless of a sale or 
refinancing. 

Refinancing Rent 25% of Net Refinancing 
Proceeds 

Continues through 2048; 
however, if the Property is 
sold during that period, 
the Refinancing Rent 
requirement is removed. 

Sale Rent 25% of Net Sale Proceeds Continues through 2048 
and is in effect for each 
sale. 

 
Since 2012 and the dissolution of the Agency, the Successor Agency has received 
average monthly participation payments of $29,531, or $354,371 per year.  All revenue 
from these rent payments are used to fulfill enforceable obligations. 

In 2016, PNC approached the City with a proposal to buy-out the Successor Agency’s 
remaining interest in the Property.  Therefore, the Successor Agency would receive a 
one-time payment versus annual payments through 2048.  It should be noted that 15% 
of the one-time payment would be distributed to the City and the remaining amount 
distributed to other taxing agencies. 

SUMMARY OF HISTORIC PAYMENTS  

The following summarizes the historic payments to the Agency, and then Successor 
Agency since 2006.1   

                                                      
1 The Successor Agency does not have records of the payments from 1996 through 2005. 



David Crabtree, City of Brea February 24, 2017 
Proposed Brea Gateway Center Payoff Agreement Page 3 

 

 1702017:BRE; JLR 
 10800.001.118 

 

 
 

Year 

Average 
Monthly 
Payment 

 
Annual 

Payments 

 
Annual 
Change 

2006 $25,652 $153,912 N/A 
2007 42,686 512,230 66.4% 
2008 40,614 487,367 (4.9%) 
2009 38,535 462,418 (5.1%) 
2010 25,202 302,429 (34.6%) 
2011 34,700 716,400 37.7% 
2012 14,024 168,285 (59.6%) 
2013 2,804 33,654 (80.0%) 
2014 20,834 250,002 642.9% 
2015 42.257 507,085 102.8% 
2016 37,532 450,390 (11.2%) 
Averages $29,531 $354,371  

OWNER’S PROPOSAL  

The Owner is proposing the buyout of the Successor Agency’s interest for $8.05 million. 
As will be discussed in more detail later, the net present value of the future Participation 
Rent is estimated at approximately $5.65 million for payments projected through 2048. 
However, the removal of the Successor Agency’s interest in the Property has an intrinsic 
value to the Owner and future buyers through a reduction in capitalization rate and 
increased flexibility in attracting capital and buyer.  Therefore, the Owner’s proposal 
also takes into account that they will have a more viable Property to sell without the 
Agreement, and are willing to pay more than the anticipated Participation Rent 
payments through 2048. 

KMA’S VALUATION OF SUCCESSOR AGENCY’S INTEREST 

The Agreement entitles the Successor Agency to annual Participation Rent payments as 
well as payments when the Property is refinanced or sold.  For purposes of estimating 
the value of the Successor Agency’s position, KMA has utilized the following 
methodology: 

Participation Rent Scenario 

KMA estimated the value of the future Participation Rent Payments to the Successor 
Agency through 2048 assuming a 9% discount rate and projecting the average monthly 



David Crabtree, City of Brea February 24, 2017 
Proposed Brea Gateway Center Payoff Agreement Page 4 

 

 1702017:BRE; JLR 
 10800.001.118 

 

payments based on the total $450,390 payment for 2016 and historical increases and 
decreases in the payments.2  The analysis concluded that the net present value of the 
remaining Participation Rent payments is estimated at approximately $5.18 million. 

Refinancing Rent Scenario 

Currently, there does not appear to be any debt on the Property and there is no way to 
predict when or if the Owner will refinance the Property.  Per the Agreement, if the 
Property is refinanced, a 25% of the Net Refinancing Proceeds payment would be made 
to the Successor Agency.  However, the future Net Spendable Income would decrease 
once the debt service payments are deducted.  Therefore, based on forecasted future 
terms for commercial loans assuming that the Property is refinanced in 2018, KMA 
assumed a 55% loan to value ratio, a 6.00% interest rate and a 30-year term.  The net 
present value of the Successor Agency’s interest is estimated to be $4.07 million.  This 
estimate is lower than the Participation Rent net present value of $5.18 million.   

Sale Rent Scenario 

Watt-Craig has previously sold 99% of its interest in Brea Gateway Center, LP to AFL-CIO 
BIT.  However, it was determined by the Successor Agency that this transaction did not 
result in a ‘sale’ of the Property which would have triggered the Sale Rent provision.  
Presumably if AFL-CIO BIT were to decide to sell their majority interest in the ownership 
entity, the Sale Rent provisions would not be triggered either.  Therefore, the only 
possibility of the Sale Rent payment being triggered is if both Watt-Craig and AFL-CIO 
BIT decide to sell the Property to a third party. 

Therefore, it is unlikely that the Owner will sell the Property with the Agreement still in 
effect due to the difference in net proceeds between the buyout and non-buyout 
scenarios.  While from the Successor Agency’s perspective, there could be value from 
the Sale Rent provision, the Successor Agency cannot force a sale and thus it is 
concluded that this provision would not be triggered through 2048. 

                                                      
2 The Successor Agency’s discount rate is 100 basis points below the Owner’s discount rate due to the 
Successor Agency being a tax-exempt entity. 



David Crabtree, City of Brea February 24, 2017 
Proposed Brea Gateway Center Payoff Agreement Page 5 

 

 1702017:BRE; JLR 
 10800.001.118 

 

It should be noted that the removal of the Successor Agency’s interest in the Property 
has an intrinsic value to the Owner in that the Property will be easier to sell and 
refinancing in the future.   

CONCLUSION 

From a buyer’s and future lender’s perspectives, the Rent provisions are senior to any 
loan and any new buyer must stay in partnership with Watt-Craig.  Also, Watt-Craig 
cannot extricate itself from the partnership.  All of these things help explain why the 
Owner’s buyout proposal of $8.05 million is higher than the estimated net present value 
of the Participation Rent payments through 2048.  To the extent that eliminating the 
Rent provision also makes it easier to reposition and/or redevelop the Property, then 
this has additional value to the Owner.  In that context, the $8.05 million offer is a 
reasonable offer.  

































Agenda Item   4. 
City of Brea

BOARD COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Chair and Board Members

FROM: David Crabtree, Community Development Director 

DATE: 03/31/2017

SUBJECT: Sale of Successor Agency Owned Property Located at 323 N. Brea Blvd.

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt resolution authorizing the sale of real property to the recommended buyer.

BACKGROUND
With the elimination of redevelopment in California in 2012, successor agencies to the former
redevelopment agencies were directed by the State to prepare a Long Range Property Management
Plan (LRPMP) to govern the disposition and use of the former Agency's non-housing properties.
Brea's LRPMP, approved by the State Department of Finance (DOF) in December 2015, included
selling three undeveloped lots in the Downtown Brea area. Via a Request for Proposal process
brokers Lee and Associates Commercial Real Estate Services, Inc. were recommended to and
approved by the Successor Agency to assist staff in selling the three properties.

Lee and Associates used comparative sales in Brea and nearby cities to establish a market value
asking price. All those who had previously inquired about the availability of former redevelopment
properties were notified that the properties were now available for sale. Purchase offers were
received over a two month period and multiple cash offers were received for each of the three
properties. The purchase offers were evaluated by staff with assistance from the brokers on criteria
that included offer amount as well as the potential buyer's intended use for the property, zoning
requirements, neighborhood compatibility and long term value of the property.

The Successor Agency and Oversight Board approved the Purchase and Sale agreements for the two
other properties owned by the Successor Agency.  Escrow has closed on the property located at 340
North Orange Avenue and escrow is anticipated to close April 7 on the property located at 112 West
Bracken Street

The Purchase and Sale agreement has been signed by the buyer of the Brea Boulevard property
and the Successor Agency has authorized the sale contingent upon the Oversight Board's approval. 
The Board is now asked to adopt a resolution approving the execution of that agreement. 

The following chart notes the recommended purchase offer and lists the other offers received. 



323 N. Brea Blvd.
19,044 SF | Mixed Use I Zone

Asking Price:
$800,000
($42.00/SF)

Recommended Offer:
Better Blocks LLC (Medical Office) - $950,000
($49.88/SF)

Other Offers: 

Pacific National Development - $950,000
Stone Chen - $900,000
Richmore Realty - $809,370
AVA Properties - $800,000
Woo Sung Lim - $800,000

The recommended buyer's intended use of the property is to build and occupy a dental office
on the property.

If the Oversight Board adopts the resolution authorizing the sale of the Brea Boulevard
property, the next step will be to open escrow.

FISCAL IMPACT
The sale proceeds from this property minus the broker commission, title report and escrow
expenses will be remitted to the County Auditor-Controller for distribution to the taxing entities
including the City of Brea. The City's share on this property is approximately $133,000.
Additionally, as the property is improved and the value increases, the annual property tax
generated will increase and thus benefit all of the taxing entities.

The Oversight Board is asked to adopt a resolution to authorize the sale of property at 323
North Brea Boulevard. This property was acquired by the former redevelopment agency for
redevelopment purposes in the Downtown Brea area. Current State legislation requires that it
be sold per the terms approved in the Long Range Property Management Plan and that the
sales proceeds be distributed to the various taxing entities, including the City of Brea. 

SIGNATURE BLOCK
Respectfully Submitted by: David Crabtree, Community Development Director
Prepared by:  Kathie DeRobbio, Economic Development Manager
Concurrence:  David Crabtree, Community Development Director

Attachments
Resolution OB 2017-09 
Purchase and Sale Agreement 
Resolution SA 2017-03 



March 31, 2017
RESO. OB 2017-09

1

RESOLUTION NO. OB 2017-09

A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY TO THE BREA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, APPROVING 
THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY’S EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT FOR THE SALE OF A 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 323 N BREA BLVD STREET AND TAKING 
RELATED ACTIONS

A. RECITALS:

(i) Pursuant to AB X1 26 (enacted in June 2011) and the California Supreme 

Court’s decision in California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Ana Matosantos, et 

al., 53 Cal. 4th 231 (2011), the former Brea Redevelopment Agency (the “Former 

Agency”) was dissolved as of February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency to the Brea 

Redevelopment Agency (the “Successor Agency”) was constituted as the successor 

entity to the Former Agency, and an oversight board of the Successor Agency (the 

“Oversight Board”) was established;

(ii) AB X1 26 added Part 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161) and Part 1.85 

(commencing with Section 34170) to Division 24 of the California Health and Safety Code

(“HSC”) (such Parts 1.8 and 1.85, including amendments and supplements thereto 

enacted after AB X1 26, being referred to herein as the “Dissolution Act”);

(iii) Pursuant to HSC Section 34175(b), all real properties (and interests in real 

properties) of the Former Agency, transferred to the control of the Successor Agency by 

operation of law;

(iv) Pursuant to HSC Section 34191.5(b), the Successor Agency prepared a 

Long Range Property Management Plan which addresses the disposition and use of the 

real properties (and interests in real property) of the Former Agency;



March 31, 2017
RESO. OB 2017-09

2

(v) The Oversight Board previously adopted Resolution No. OB 2013-09 (on 

December 3, 2013), Resolution No. OB 2015-01 (on January 20, 2015), Resolution No. 

OB 2015-04 (on April 20, 2015), Resolution No. OB 2015-9 (on November 19, 2015) and 

Resolution No. OB 2015-10 (on December 21, 2015), approving the Successor Agency’s 

Long Range Property Management Plan and four amendments thereto (as so amended,

the “LRPMP”);     

(vi) The California State Department of Finance (the “DOF”) issued an approval 

letter on December 29, 2015, indicating that the DOF has reviewed and approved the 

LRPMP;

(vii) Pursuant to HSC Section 34191.3(a), the DOF-approved LRPMP shall 

govern, and supersede all other provisions relating to, the disposition and use of all real 

property assets of the Former Agency; 

(viii) The LRPMP, as approved by the DOF, contemplates the sale of a property 

(the “Property”) located at 323 n Brea Boulevard, Brea – identified in the LRPMP as 

Property No. 2;

(ix) In order to implement the LRPMP, the Successor Agency retained a broker 

to determine an estimate for the sale price of the Property based on comparables and to 

facilitate the sale;

(x) The Successor Agency received multiple offers for the Property, among 

which the highest offering price was $950,000 (which was above the estimate based on 

the comparables), for the sale of the Property to Better Blocks, LLC (the “Buyer”);

(xi) Attached to this Resolution as Attachment A is the form of a Purchase and 

Sale Agreement and Joint Escrow Instructions (the “Sale Agreement”), to be entered by 

and between the Successor Agency and the Buyer;



March 31, 2017
RESO. OB 2017-09

3

(xii) The Oversight Board has received a copy of Resolution No. SA 2017-03, 

adopted by the City Council of the City of Brea, acting as the Successor Agency on March 

7, 2017, requesting the Oversight Board to approve the Successor Agency’s execution 

and delivery of the Sale Agreement and the sale of Property pursuant to the terms of the 

Sale Agreement;

(xiii) Notice of the proposed action presented in this Resolution was posted

beginning on March 2, 2017;

(xiv) Pursuant to HSC Section 34191.5(f), this Resolution (pertaining to actions 

to implement the LRPMP) will become effective upon adoption without any requirement 

for submission to the DOF for additional review;

B. RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, be it found, determined and resolved by the Oversight Board 

of the Successor Agency to the Brea Redevelopment Agency, as follows:

1. The above recitals are true and correct and are a substantive part of this 

Resolution.

2. This Oversight Board hereby approves and directs the Successor Agency’s 

execution and delivery of the Sale Agreement and the sale of the Property pursuant to 

the terms of the Sale Agreement.

3. The officers of the Successor Agency are hereby authorized, jointly and 

severally, to do all things which they may deem necessary or proper to effectuate the 

purposes of this Resolution and the Sale Agreement, and any such actions previously 

taken are hereby ratified and confirmed.



March 31, 2017
RESO. OB 2017-09

4

4. This Resolution has been reviewed with respect to the applicability of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) 

(“CEQA”). Pursuant to the State CEQA Guidelines (14 Cal Code Regs 15000 et seq.) (the 

“Guidelines”), the Oversight Board has determined that the actions taken under this 

Resolution are not a project pursuant to CEQA and is exempt therefrom because it is an 

organizational or administrative activity of government that will not result in direct or 

indirect physical changes in the environment (Guidelines Section 15378(b)(5)).  Staff of 

the Successor Agency, is hereby authorized to prepare and post a notice of exemption 

pursuant to Guidelines Section 15062.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 31ST day of March, 2017

________________________________
Bill Gallardo, Chair

ATTEST:  ____________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



March 31, 2017
RESO. OB 2017-09

5

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing Resolution was passed at a special meeting of the Oversight Board for the 

Successor Agency to the Brea Redevelopment Agency, held on the 31st day of March, 

2017, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:

DATE: March 31, 2017

________________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



ATTACHMENT A

Purchase and Sale Agreement and Joint Escrow Instructions 

(substantial final form)








































































	Agenda
	January 20, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes
	Att1_01-20-2017 Special Meeting Minutes
	Consideration of Approval of Execution and Delivery of an Agreement to Terminate Disposition and Development Agreement as to Gateway Center and Payoff
	Att1_Resolution OB 2017-08
	Att2_Reso No.SA 2017-02
	Att3_KMA Buyout Memo 2.24.17
	background statement
	summary of historic payments
	Owner’s proposal
	KMA’s Valuation of Successor Agency’s Interest
	Participation Rent Scenario
	Refinancing Rent Scenario
	Sale Rent Scenario

	Conclusion

	Att4_Sections of lease and DDA amendments
	Sale of Successor Agency Owned Property Located at 323 N. Brea Blvd
	Att1_Resolution OB 2017-09
	Att2_Purchase and Sale Agreement
	Att3_Resolution SA 2017-03

